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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF DELHI DUTY FREE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of DELHI DUTY FREE SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under section 143(11)
of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
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used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018,
and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company
as on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position - Refer Note 27 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts; SKINg
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order/CARO 2016")
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
“"Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Pramod B. Shuklia
Partner
(Membership No. 104337)

Place: &urugram
Date: may 08,2012
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ANNEXURE “"A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018 of DELHI DUTY FREE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DELHI DUTY FREE
SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial statements, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controis system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting pri”CjF’.Jf-’aT51NS
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company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2018, based on the criteria for internal control over financial reporting established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
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Partner

Date: mg. 0L ,20/8
J of (Membership No. 104337)
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ANNEXURE “"B"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2018 of DELHI DUTY FREE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED)

(1)

(i)

(il

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

In respect of its fixed assets

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b. The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides
for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to
the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

C. The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold
land and building hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016 (“the CARO 2016") is not applicable.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and
hence reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public, and hence reporting under clause (v) of the CARO 2016 is
not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and
Services Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

We are informed that the operations of the Company during the year did not give rise
to any liability for Excise Duty.

b. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employee’s
State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax,
Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at
March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Place: lfumﬁmm
Date; Moy 08,2018 K))Q \1/

c. There are no dues of Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Customs Duty and Value Added Tax as on March 31, 2018 on account of disputes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company has not
taken any loans or borrowings from government and financial institutions and not issued
any debentures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the term loans
have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were
raised other than temporary deployment pending application of proceeds. The Company
has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments).

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has paid only sitting fees to the Directors and has not paid/ provided for
managerial remuneration and hence the provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act,
2013 do not apply to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO
2016 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company
is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable,
for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv)
of the CARO 2016 is not applicable to the Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

[

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner
(Membership No. 104337)
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at Vlarch 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless ntherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 17 34 865
Capital work-in-progress 3 1498 855
Intangible assets 4 11733 13371
Financial assets
(i) Loans 5A 11575 103 34
(ii) Others - financial assets 5B 237 280
Deferred tax assets (net) 16 1570 1712
Other non-current assets 6 533 6.36
Total non-current assets 288.80 280.53
Current assets
Inventories 7 130 96 101 76
Financial assets
(1) Loans SA 209 o
(it} Trade receivables 5C = 047
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 28 25 28 68
(iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above 8A 1.46 '
(v) Other financial assets 5B 49 31 3557
Other current assets 6 772 392
Total current assets 219.79 170.40
Total assets 508.59 450.93
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 9 80.00 80 00
Other equity 10 183.70 14776
Total equity 263.70 227.76
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11 48 .62 76 97
(if) Other financial liabilities 13 19.82 2961
Provisions 15 387 3.24
Total non-current liabilities 72.31 109.82
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11 1391
(i) Trade payables 12
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 106 33 64 90
(iti) Other financial liabilities 13 42 51 3721
Other current liabilities 14 653 630
Provisions s 073 073
Current tax liabilities (net) 2,57 421
Total current liabilities 172.58 113.35
Total equity and liabilities 508.59 450.93
Summary ol significant sccounting policies 2.2

See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

[y

.
Pramod B. Shukia
Partner

Place: éyumgmm
Date: ij gg/ 2018
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
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Notes
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
INCOME
I. Revenue from operations 17 1,118.09 1,000 29
II. Other income 18 17 69 20.73
111, Total Income (I + II) 1,135.78 1,021.02
EXPENSES
Purchases of stock-in-trade 426.80 353.08
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 19 (24 88) 1150
Employee benefits expense 20 3405 3074
Depreciation and amortization expense 21 2009 1973
Finance costs 22 1112 16.15
Other expenses 23 482.32 441 03
IV. Total expenses 949.50 872.23
V. Profit before tax (IHI-1V) 186.28 148.79
VI. Tax expense:
Current Tax 16 60.80 5431
Deferred Tax 16 139 379
VIL Profit for the year (V-VI) 124.09 90.69
VIIT Other comprehensive income (OCI)
A [tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange difference in translating fi il from functional (8.76) 053
currency to presentation currency
B ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 008 oon
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and
loss (003) 0.00
Total other comprehensive income (8.71) 0.52
IX. Teotal comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 115.38 91.21
Earnings per share (face value Rs. 10 per shage): 24
(1) Basic (in Rs.) 1551 1134
(2) Diluted (in Rs.) 1551 1134
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended Vlarch 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

EY
— D"

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner DIN

Place: Bu Mﬂm "
Date: ma{j 08,79'?
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
, Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Place: New Delhi
Dinte I'Y‘l(_'l.\.i 0¥

12

Confpany Seeretary
Place New Delln

Date:  playy 0g, 30l8
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Delhi Duty Free Services Privare Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amount in Rupees crore, uniess otherwise stated)

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash Nows
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Net gain on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Foreign currency translation reserve adjustments

Interest income

Finance costs

Provision for bad and doubtful receivables (net)

Provision for stock loss

Acturial (Gain)/ Loss on employee benefits

Advances written off

Operating prolit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital:

(Increase) in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in financial/non-financial assets

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables and other financial/non-financial liabilities
Increase in provisions

Cash generated from operations
Less: Direct tax paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

B Cash Mow from investing activities:

Capilal expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment (after adjustment of increase/decrease in capital work-in-

progress and advances for capital expenditure)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Interest received

Bank balances (including non-current) not considered as cash and cash equivalent (net)
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)

C Net cash flow from financing activities:
Finance costs paid (includes Rs. 0 48 Crore capitalised (Previous Year : Rs Nil))
[nterim dividend paid on equity shares (including tax on dividend)
Final dividend paid on equity shares (including tax on dividend)
Repayment of long term borrowings
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Net Increase/ (decrease) in short-term borrowings

Net cash flow used in in financing activities (C )

Net (decrease ) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with banks:

- In current accounts

- in EEFC accounts

Cash in hand

Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Total cash and cash equivalents

Notes :
1. Previous year figures have been regrouped, where necessary to conform to current year's classification

2 The above Cash Flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS-7 on Statements of Cash Flow

March 31,2017

186 28 148 79
2009 1973
(007) ;
(2.69) 621)

(1553) (15 44)
112 16.05
(002) .

032 071

0.05 0o

0.10 :

13 37 14 83
199.65 163.62
(29 52) 1594
(21.17) 379

3185 (9.40)

064 0.70

(18 20) 1103

181,45 174.65
(57 88) (52.79)

123.57 121.86
(23 52) (9 10)

0.07 .
360 468

(0.90) (0.02)
(20.75) (4.44)
(11.55) (16.05)
(50.55) (43 33)
(28.89) (13 48)
(41.39) (33 84)

1522 E

1391 (19 90)

(103.25) (126.60)

(0.43) (9 18)

28,68 3786

28.25 28.68

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
461 122
15.36 20,47
8.28 399
S 3.00
28.25 28.68

Sec accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Pramod B. Shukia

Partner Place: New Delhi "
Date Moy 08124

Fiwancial officer
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors ol
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limijged

DirdTtor

Lﬂ '!!ﬂ
DIN

Place New Delt
PacroLy ok »o)R

Company Secretary
Place New Delhi
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2.2

a)

b)

<)

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2018

Corporate information

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (“the Company"} s a private limited company domiciled in India and 1s incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India
The Company is a Joint venture between Delhi Internationat Airport Limited, Yalorvin Limited and GMR Airports Limited and 1s pnmarily engaged n the business of operating duty free
shops at international airport in Delhi, The registered office of the Company s located at Building No. 301, Ground Floor, Opp. Terminal-3, [GIA, New Delhi-110027.

The Financial Statements were approved for issue In accordance with a resoiution of the board of directors passed on May 08, 2018

Slanificant accountina oolicies

Basis of preparation

(i) The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared In accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The accounting policies followed in preparation of the
Financial Statements are consistent with those followed n the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2017

(i) The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair vaiue at the end of the
reporting period. (as explained in accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

(iii) The financial information are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR“) whereas the functional currency of the Company I1s USD and all the values are rounded to the nearest Crore (INR
00,00,000), except when otherwise indicated

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization and impairment loss, If any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Capitat work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under development as at the balance sheet date

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a seperate assets are derecognised when
replaced. Further, when each major inspection Is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gamn or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation/amortization of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each period end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation/Amortization on Property, plant and equipment

(i) Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment has been provided on a pro-rata basis to the period of use under the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of each asset
as determined by the management. In accordance with Part A of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of following assets , the company, based on technical evaluation,
believes that the useful life of such assets is different from the useful life specified in Schedule II to The Companies Act 2013 and adopted the useful life of such assets accordingly

Categories Useful Life (SLM) Useful life as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013
Office equipment 3 years 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years 10 years

Plant and machinery 5 years 15 years

Vehicies 5 years 8 years

Server 3 years 6 years

Computers 3 years 3 years

(i) Leasehold improvements are amoitised over the primary period of the lease or ecanomic useful life of 10 years, whichever is lower
(iii) Assets costing individually Rs. 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the period of capitalization
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, If any [nternally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure s reflected in profit or loss in the period In which the expenditure is incurred

License represents right to run and operate duty free shops and represents time value of security deposit amount paid to Delhi [nternational Airport Limited in accordance with terms
of concession arrangement

Amortization of intangibles - Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amartisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for an a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful fives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less accumuilated impairment losses
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e)
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h)
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Inventory

Stock-in-trade - Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 15 determined on a moving weighted average basis and includes all applicable costs incurred in
bringing goods to their present location and condition

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity tcurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded asan adjustment to the borrowing cost.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, ar when annual impairment testing for an asset s
required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's racoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash generating units’ (CGUS) net selling price and its
value In use. The recoverable amount 1s determined for an individual asset, uniess the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
Company of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased
If such ndication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount, A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recagnised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal 1s recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation
Increase.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets, and Commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision
to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is matenal, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as a finance cost."

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

s A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will not be required to settle the obligation
s A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

* A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outfow of resources is remote

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve manths of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus
etc.,are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund are defined contribution scheme, The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable

The Company racognizes contribution payabie as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the
reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to,
for example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit pian is determined using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet
date, which recognised each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other

Comprehensive Income in the periad in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or 10ss in subsequent periods. Past service costs are recognised in profit or
loss on the earlier of:

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
if) The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset, The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation
as an expense In the statement of profit and loss:

1) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

ii) Net interest expense or income

Long term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recegnised as a
liability at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made in respect of services rendered by employees at the balance sheet date
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

= Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity

Financial assets

Initial r ition and

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value pius, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financiat asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
a, Debt instruments at amortised cost
b. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments at amortised cost:

A ‘debt instrument’ 13 measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivabies. For more
information on receivables, refer to Note 9

Debt instrument at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorlzation as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing sa reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL,
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P8L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) 1s primarily derecognised (i e. removed from the baiance sheet)
when:

a. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b. The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflacts the rights and obligations that the company has retained

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximurm amount
of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

[n accordance with [nd AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that resuit from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18
¢) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on;
a) Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company ta track changes in credit risk, Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recagnition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resufting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Notes farming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
ECL is the diffarence between all contractual cash flows that are #ue to the company in accordance with tne contract and zii the casn llows that the entity expects to receive (ie., all

cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

a) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument However, in rare cases
when the expected life of the financial Instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financiai instrument
b) Cash flows from the sale of coliateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the pertod is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L) This a8mount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

4 Finangal assets measured as al amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., @8 an integral part of the
measuramant of Lhose assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce impairment
allowance from the gross carrying amount

b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL s presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating
an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis,

Financial liabilities

Initial r ition and t
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives,
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabillties at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109
are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently
transferred to P&L, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of
profit ar loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is Lthe category mast relevant to the company. After initial recognition, interest-bearng loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and lpsses are racognised in profit or foss whan the llabilities are derecogmisett as wall a5 through the EIR amortisabon process

Amortised cost is caldulated by taking Into account any discount ar pramium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and lass. This category generally applies ta borrowings. For more information refar Nota 5,

Derecognition

A Tinancial liability is derecognised when the nbligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the ariginal
lianility and the recognition of a new liakility. The difference i the respective carrying amounts s recognised in the statemeant of profit or nss.

iflcation of fi ial asset:

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification 1s made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reciassification s made only if there is a change in the business modei for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business madel occurs when the company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which 1s the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount s reported in the consofidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

k)  Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and cross currency swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered nto and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of denvatives are
taken directly to profit or loss
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original matunty of three months or tess, which are subject to an
nsignificant risk of changes in value,

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby Profit/(loss) after tax reported under Statement of Proift and loss 15 adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
available information

Foreign currency

The Financial Statements are presented (n INR, however the funtional currency of the Company is USD

Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date

Exchange differences arising an settlement or transiation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of the following:

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
Iltems measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or 10ss arising on translation of non-

monetary items measured at fair value 1s treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i e., transtation differences on items whaose fair
value gain or ioss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively)

Conversion from functional currencv to presentation currencv

The Company's functional currency is United States Dollar (USD) and INR 1s the presentation currency. For conversion of functional currency amounts inta INR the Company has
applied below mentioned conversion procedures:

1. assets and liabilities for each Balance Sheet presented has been translated at the closing rate at the date of that Balance Sheet

2. income and expenses for each Statement of Profit and Loss presented has been translated at exchange rates at the date of the transactions.

3. all resulting exchange differences has been recognised in other comprehensive income.

Fair value measurement

The Campany measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market particlpant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as foltows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

tevel 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 15 unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reparting period

The Company determines the policies and procedures far both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value,
and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independerice and whether professional standards are maintained. Valuers are normally rotated every three years

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s

accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

The Company, in conjunction with the Company‘s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change Is reasonable
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

p)

@

r)

s)

t)

For the purpose of ‘air value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,?haracterlstncs and risks of thgasset or Iiat;ﬁtv And
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the retevant notes
a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 25)

b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 30)

¢) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 29)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue 15 reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar aliowances

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods at the duty free outlets operated by the Company (s recognised at the time of delivery of goods to customers which coincides with transfer of risks
and reward. Sales are stated net of returns and discounts

Interest income
For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, Interest income s recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR)

Rental income
Visibility charges has been recognised as per the terms of the contract with the customer

Taxes on income

Current income tax
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be pard to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used ta compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised i correfation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
at the reporting date

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

1) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability I1n a transaction that 1s not a business combinatton and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

1i) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be contralled and it is probable that the temporary differences will nat reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

iii) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the imtial recogmition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

Iv) In respect of deductibie temporary differences assoctated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 15 no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pertod when the asset is realised or the liability 1s settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity) Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly In equity

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation autharity

Segment information

The Company has only one repartable business segment, which is operation of duty free outlets at Delhi International Airport and operates In a single business segment. Accordingly,
the amounts appearing in the Financial Statements relate to the Company’s single business segment

Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease charges are
recognised as an expense In the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant iease

Operating cycie

Assets and liabilities are classified as current if it is expected to realise or settle within 12 months after the balance sheet date
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

rch 31, 2018

| Statements for the year ended

Recent accountina pronouncements

a) New Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) issued but not vet effective

b)

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ was notifiad on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers
Under [nd AS 115, revenue s recogmsed at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferning goods or services to a
customer

The new revenue standard will supersede current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This new standard requires revenue Lo be recognized when promised goods or
services are transferred to customers in amounts that reftect the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange far those goods or services

Ind AS 115 s effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2019 and permits two possible methods of transition

(1) retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, with the option to elect
certain practical expedients as defined within Ind AS 115 (the full retrospective method); or

(ii) retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 recognized at the date of initial application (1 April 2018) and providing certain additional disclosures as
defined in Ind AS 115 (the modified retrospective method)

The Company Is evaluating requirements of the IND AS 115 and the effect on the financial statements Is being evaluated. A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of Ind AS 115
on the financial statements will only be possible once the evaluation is completed.

Amendments to Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not vet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are disciosed below. The Company ntends to adopt these
standards, If applicable, when they become effective.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2018 amending the following standard:

Amendments to Ind AS [2 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

T'he amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more
than their carrying amount

Entities are required (o apply the amendments retrospectively However, on initial application of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in
opening refained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained eamnings and other components of equity Entities applying this relief must
disclose that fact

These amendments are effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 April 2018 These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-maonetary liability arising from the advance
consideration If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration

Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective basis Alternatively, an entity may apply these requirements prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially
recognised on or after

(i) The beginning of the reporting period in which the eatity first applies the Appendix, or

(i) The beginning, of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity (irst applies the Appendix

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2018 The Company does not expect any material effect on its financial statements

Amendments to Ind AS 40 - [ransfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or development into, or out of investment property The amendments state that a change in use occurs
when the property meets. or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use A mere change in management's intentions for the use of a property does not
provide evidence of a change in use

Entities should apply the amendments prospectively to changes in use that occur on or atter the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments An entity should
reassess the classification of property held at that date and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions that exist al that date Retrospective application in accordance with Ind AS 8 is only

permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight

The amendments are etfective for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2018 The Company will apply amendments when they become effective
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

3. Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

. e Plant & equipment P ale s Computers Office equipment Vehicles Total
improyements fixtures
Cost or deemed cost
As at April 1, 2016 28.30 9.50 18.55 2.71 0.43 0.35 59 84
Additions - 032 0.03 0 66 00! = 102
Deductions - - . - . = »
Adjustments (represents FCTR*) (0.64) (022) 0.4 (0.06) 0.01 00D (133)
As at March 31, 2017 27.66 9.60 18.17 3.31 0.45 0.34 59.53
Additions 11.07 2.03 383 027 01l 030 1761
Deductions - (039) - - - (0 25) (0 64)
Adjustments (represents FCTR*) 008 (0.10) 005 002 (0.02) (0.09) (0.06)
As at March 31, 2018 38.81 11.14 22.05 3.60 0.54 0.30 76.44
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
As at April 1, 2016 14.74 8.80 16.91 2.16 0.37 0.35 43.33
Charge for the year 546 034 080 033 003 6 96
Deductions - . . - - . .
Adjustments (represents FCTR*) 113 {0.19) (0.30) (0.03) (0.0D) (00N 0.59
As at March 31, 2017 21,33 8,95 17.41 2,46 0.39 0.34 50.88
Charge for the year 540 043 102 041 004 005 734
Deductions - (0.39) < . . (024) (063)
Adjustments (represents FCTR*) .55 (0.09) 015 0.00 0.00 (Q11) 1.51
As at March 31, 2018 28.28 8.90 18.58 2.87 0.43 0.04 59.10
Net block
As at March 31, 2018 10.53 2.24 3.47 0.73 0.11 0.26 17.34
As at March 31, 2017 6.33 0.65 0.76 0.85 0.06 0.00 8.65
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2018 2017
Capital work in progress (Refer Note (i) below) 14.98 8.55
Notes :

(i) Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2018 comprises expenditure for the leasehold improvements in the course of construction and includes borrowing costs capitalized of Rs

0 48 crore (Previous Year Rs Nil)

(11) For details of Property, plant and equipment pledged as security for borrowing - Refer Note | 1

* Foreign Currency [ranslation Reserve (FCTR) arises on account of conversion of amounts initially recorded at historical value into presentation currency as on reporting dates
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

4. Intangible assets

Computer Software Licenses** Total
(Acquired)

Cost or deemed cost
Gross block
As at April 1, 2016 2.97 266.02 268.99
Additions 0.22 - 0.22
Deductions - 2 -
Adjustments (represents FCTR*) (0.08) (6.00) (6.08)
As at March 31, 2017 3.11 260.02 263.13
Additions 0.81 - 0.81
Deductions - - -
Adjustments (represents FCTR*) 0.03 0.83 0.86
As at March 31, 2018 3.95 260.85 264.80
Accumulated amortization
As at April 1,2016 2.70 111.72 114.42
Charge for the year 0.17 12.60 12.77
Deductions - - -
Adjustments (represents FCTR*) (0.06) 2.29 2.23
As at March 31, 2017 2.81 126.61 129.42
Charge for the year 0.26 12.50 12.75
Deductions - - -
Adjustments (represents FCTR*) 0.01 5.28 5.29
As at March 31, 2018 3.08 144.39 147.47
Net block
As at March 31,2018 0.87 116.46 117.33
As at March 31,2017 0.30 133.41 133.71

** Licenses represents right to run and operate duty free shops (Also refer Note 1). The remaining amortisation period is 6.7 years (as at
March 31,2017 - 7.7 years)

* Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (FCTR) arises on account of conversion of amounts initially recorded at historical value into
presentation currency as on reporting dates.
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

S. Financial assets

5A. Loans

Non current

As at
March 31, 2018

As at

Mareh 31, 2017

Current
As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

Carried at amortised cost

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits

- To related parties 11569 103 18 151
- To other parties 0.06 0.16 058 "
Total 115.75 103.34 2.09 -
5B. Other financial assets
Non current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Carried at amortised cost
Unsecured
Considered good
Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money against bank guarantees 160 216 s
[nterest accrued but not due on bank deposits 077 064 004 .
Credit card collections in hand - - 300 308
Amounts recoverable from related parties - 419 039 -
Amount recoverable towards rebate, promotion, etc 4208 3210
Considered doubtful
Amount recoverable towards rebate, promotion, etc - - 120 122 =+
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful receivables - (1.20) (122) *
- = 46.27 32.49
Total other financial assets 2.37 2.80 49.31 35.57
* reclassified from Cash and Cash Equivalents for appropriate presentation in line with current year
** reclassified from Financial Assets - Loans for appropriate presentation in line with current year
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful receivables (expected credit loss allowance)
Particulars Amount
Balance as at April |, 2017 (1.22)
Add : Created during the year (0.18)
Less : Released during the year 020
Balance as at March 31, 2018 (1.20)
5C. Trade receivables
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31. 2017
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivables . 047
Total - 0.47
6. Other assets
Non current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Capital advances 235 012 B
(A) 2.35 0.12 s S
Others
Advance to suppliers - - 332 129 *
Prepaid expenses 121 - 146 1 00
Income tax payments less liablities 042 498 - -
Balance with government authorities 135 126 2.87 157
Others - - 007 0.06
(B) 2.98 6.24 7.72 3.92
Total 5.33 6.36 7.72 3.92

“ reclassified from Financial Assets - Loans for appropnate presentation in line with current year
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

7. Inventories

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(Valued at cost or NRV, whichever is lower)
Stock in trade - traded goods 130.96 101,76
Total 130.96 101.76

Notes:

7.1: The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year - Rs. 401.92 crore (March 31, 2017: Rs. 364.58 crore)

7.2: The cost of Inventories recognized as an expense includes Rs. 0.32 ctore (March 31, 2017: Rs. 0.71 crore) towards provision for slow/ non-
moving items during the year.

7.3: The above inventories have been pledged as security for borrowings (Refer Note 11).

8. Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Balances with Banks
-in current accounts 4.61 1.22
-in EEFC accounts 15.36 20.47
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three i 3.00
months '
Cash on hand 8.28 3.99
Total 28.25 28.68
8A. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
Mareh 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Balances with banks to the extent held as margin 146
money against bank guarantees '
Total 1.46 -
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended VMarch 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

10. Other equity

As at
March 31, 2018

General Reserve

As at
March 31, 2017

998 998
Foreign currency translation reserve (4 58) 418
Retained eamings 178 30 133 60
Total 183.70 147.76
Particulars . S

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

10.1 General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year

998 998
Changes during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 9.98 9.98
10.2 Foreign currency translation reserve (Refer Note 2.2(n))
Balance at the beginning of the year 4.18 365
Changes during the year __(8.76) 053
Balance at the end of the year (4.58) 4,18
10.3 Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 133.60 99 73
Add: Net profit for the year 124.09 90 .69
Less : Payment of dividends and tax thereon
Final dividend on equity shares for the year ended on March 31, 2017 (Rs. 3 per share) (previous year Rs (24.00) (11.20)
1 40 per share)
Tax on above dividend (4 89) (2.28)
Interim dividend (Rs 5 25 per share) (previous year Rs 4 50 per share) (42.00) (36 .00)
Tax on interim dividend (8.35) (7 33)
(79.44) (56.81)
178.25 133.61
Other items of comprehensive income (OCI)
Other comprehensive income arising from re-measurement of defined benefit obligations net of 0.05 0 01)
Income tax
Total retained earnings 178.30 133.60
Total (10.1 + 10.2 + 10.3) 183.70 147.76

Note :

General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits from the retained earnings General reserve is created by transfer of one component of equity to another

and is not an item of other comprehensive income




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements (or the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

11. Financial liabilities - Borrowings

Non - Current

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Secured
From banks:

Term loans (Refer Notes (i) & (ii) below) 87 04 113 16
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings 38 42 36 19

48.62 76.97

Short term borrowings :

- Buyers credit (Refer Notes (i) & (iv) below) - -
Loan repayable on demand (Refer Notes (i) & (iii) below) = -
Total 48.62 76.97
Notes :

(i) The borrowings are secured by:

Current

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

214 =
11.77 5

13.91

13.91 -

- First charge by way of hypothecation of the Company's stock in trade and other movables including book-debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies,

receivables, both present and future
- First charge on movable fixed assets of the Company, both present and future
- Escrow agreement with the bank and the Company for first and exclusive charge on receivable

- Further, 30% of sponsors shareholding in the Company was pledged (against Term loan I, Term loan [1 and against cash credit upto Rs 27 crores) which is waived off on 25th

January, 2018

(ii) Terms of repayment of secured loans
Term Loan [:

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Quarter ending Quarterly Total amount of No. of Quarterly Total amount of
No. of Quarters R .
installments Installments  Quarters installments Installments
September 2020 ! 240 240 | 240 2.40
December 2019 — June 2020 3 6 00 18.00 3 6 00 18 00
June 2018 — September 2019 6 9 00 54 .00 10 9 00 90 00
74.40 110.40

Total

Present rate of interest is in the range of 8 30% to 8 40% p a

Term Loan [1: The last installment ot the loan was paid in December 2017

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Quarter ending No. of Quarter Quarterly  Total amount of No. of Quarterly Total amount of
installments Instaliments  Quarters installments Installments
December 2017 007 020
Total 0.20
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Short term borrowings :
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Term Loan I11 :

[ As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 ]

Quarter ending No. of Quarters Quarterly  Total amount of No. of Quarterly  Total amount of
installments lnstallments  Quarters installments Installments

June 2022 1 079 079 . - =
March 2022 1 079 079 = -
December 2021 1 082 082 - -
September 2021 1 082 082 = -
March 2021 — June 2021 2 081 162 - -
September 2019 - December 2020 6 0 81 4 86 - -
March 2019 — June 2019 2 062 123
June 2018 — December 2018 3 061 1 82 - J -
September 2017 — March 2018 - . - 3 011 033
June 2018 - - . 1 229 229
Total 12.75 2.62

The present interest rate for Term Loan 11 for INR loan is in the range of 8 30% to 8 40% p a and Term Loan -[IT for USD facility is in the range of434% to 4 95% pa

(iii) The present rate of interest on cash credit (INR) is 8 45% p.a. and for working capital demand loan (WCDL-USD) is 3 42% p a
(iv) The present interest rates on buyer's credit are in the range 0of221%t0295%pa

12, Financial liabilities - Trade payables

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Total outstanding due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 32) = -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 106 33 64.90
Total 106.33 64.90

Credit period varies as per the contractual terms of various suppliers/ vendors. No interest is generally charged by the suppliers/ vendors. The Company has appropriate policy in
place to ensure that all dues are paid within the credit terms agreed with the parties

13. Other financial liabilities

Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Derivative not designated as hedge 19,82 2961 - -
19.82 2961 s -

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Current maturities of long term borrowings - - 3842 36 19
(Refer Note 11)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 004 002
Payables towards property, plant and equipment - - 4.05 1 00
Total other financial liabilities at amortised cost - - 4251 3721

Total 19.82 29.61 42.51 37.21
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

14. Other liabilities

Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Advances from customers - - 1.65 1.00
Statutory dues - - 4.88 5.30
Total - - 6.53 6.30
15. Provisions
Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 1.36 1.19 032 0.31
Provision for gratuity 2.51 2.05 0.41 0.42
Total 3.87 3.24 0.73 0.73
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

16. Income tax

The mayor components ot Income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2018 1s:
Statement of Profit and Loss:

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

[ncome tax expenses reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss

oC1
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OC! during in the year:

Net loss/(pain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Tax charged to OC1

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2018:

For the yecar ended
March 31, 2017

60 .80 5431

1.39 379
62.19 58.10
(0.03) 0.00
(0.03) 0.00

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March J1, 2017

Accounting profit before tax
At applicable income tax rate of 34 608%

affeet of expenses | (income) that are not deductible m determining taxable
Donations

Unwinding of discount on security deposits for licenses (net)

Exchange difference

Others (including effect of change in tax rate from 34 608% to 34 944%)

Tax expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss

186 28 148 79
64.47 3149

042 033
033 072
(2.98) 537
(0.05) 0.19
62.19 58.10

The tax rate used for the FY 2017-18 and FY 2016-17 reconciliation above Is the corporate tax rate of 34 608% payable by the corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian Tax Laws

Deferred tax on timing differences as on 31 March, 2018 is calculated at 34.944%

Deferred tax:

Opening Bal R d in Stat Recognised Closing balance
(As at ol Profit and Loss in OCI (As at March 31, 2018)
March 31, 2017)

Deferred tax liability
- Impact of amortization of processing fees paid for the term loan using EIR 010 (009) - 0.01
method over the following vears

0.10 (0.09) - 0.01
T effect of ems constiuting deferred tax assets
- Fixed Assets: Impact of differences between tax depreciation and 571 120 - 691
depreciation/amortization charged in the financial statements
- MTM Loss - 108 108
- Provision for stock loss - 036 . 036
- Provision for employee benefits 162 (0 00) (003) 159
- Provision for custom duty payable 0.96 030 . |1 26
- Allowance for bad and doubtful receivables 042 0.00 . 042
- lmpact of reversal of hedge reserve and amount of provision for mark to 851 (442) - 409

market charged to retained eamings

17.22 (1.48) (0,033 15.71
Net deferred tax asset 17.12 (1.39) {0.03) 15.70
Reconciliations of deferred tax liabilities/assets (net)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening balance as of April 1, 2017 17.12 20.91
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (139 (379)
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in OCI (0.03) 0.00
Closing balance as at March 31, 2018 15.70 17.12
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

17. Revenue from operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Revenue from operations
Sale of products - traded goods 1,118.09 1,000.29
Total 1,118.09 1,000.29

18. Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated at fair value through profit or
loss:
- Interest on Bank deposits 0.48 0.29
- Interest on coupon received from bank 3.29 4.55
-Unwinding of discounts on security deposits given 11.76 10.61
- [nterest income from income tax refund 090 s
Other non-operating income
- Visibility charges 1.17 3.7t
- Provisions for doubtful receivables no longer required, written back (net) 0.02 s
- Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.07 -
- Miscellaneous [ncome = 1.57
Total 17.69 20.73

19. Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Closing stock
- Stock in trade - traded goods 131.55 106.67
131.55 106.67
Less:
Opening stock
- Stock in trade - traded goods 106.67 118.17
106.67 118.17
(Increase) / decrease (24.88) 11.50
- Stock in trade - traded goods
T
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

20. Employee benefit expenses*

For the vear ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Salaries, wages and bonus (including deputed staff cost) 2974 26 83
Contribution to provident and other funds 2.80 248
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 26) 072 068
Staff welfare expenses 079 075
Total 34.05 30.74
*Net of recoveries
21. Depreciation and amortization expense
For the vear eaded For the year ended
March 31, 2018 Muarch 31, 2017
Deprecution of property, plant and equipment ( Refer Note 3) 734 6.96
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer Note 4) 1275 12.77
Total 20.09 19.73
22. Finance costs
For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
[nterest expense for financial liabilities not classified at FVTPL 10 16 1513
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues 0.09 009
Other borrowing costs (guarantee charges, etc ) 0.87 093
Total 11.12 16.15
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

23, Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31. 2018 March 31, 2017
Rent 211 192
[nsurance 112 058
Repairs and maintenance
-Computers 182 2.09
-Others 086 0.53
Electricity, Fuel and water charges 239 2.93
Advertising and sales promotion 535 416
Legal and Professional Fees 649 602
Travelling and conveyance 080 105
Payment to auditors (Refer Note (i) below) 044 032
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 24 190
Marketing fees 1313 1184
Concession fees 41720 372 34
Airport service charges 582 549
Comrmission on collections 929 754
Warehouse and transportation 905 907
Packing charges 331 292
Detention charges 017 034
Exchange differences (net) (257) 756
Director's sitting tee 016 014
Miscellaneous expenses 297 229
Total 482.32 441.03
Note (i)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Payment to Auditors # ;
For Audit fee 015 018
For other services 028* 012
For reimbursment of expense 001 002
Total 0.44 0.32

*Includes amount paid to erstwhile auditors Rs 0 21 Crore

# Payment to auditors includes taxes
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

24. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (Rs in crores) 124 09 90.69
Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing Earning Per Share 8,00,00,000 8,00,00,000
(Basic)
Eaming Per Share (Basic) (in Rs.) 1551 1134
Earning Per Share (Diluted) (in Rs ) 1551 11.34
Face value per.share (in Rs ) 10 10
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

25. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial Statements was prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
See Note 30 for further disclosures.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting year. There was no
change in the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as compared to year ended March 31, 2018,
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

26. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

a) Defined Contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions which are detined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes. the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised Rs. 2.6 crores (March 31.3017: Rs. 2.43
crores) for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified
in the rules of the schemes.

b) Defined Benefit plans - gratuity (unfunded)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (unfunded). Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure
@ |5 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months

These plans typically expose the company to acturial risks such as interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk

Interest rate risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the planned liabilities

Longevity risk
The present vaiue of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reterence to the best estimate of the morality of planned participants both during and
after the employment. An increase in the life expentncy of the planned participants will increase the planned liabitities

Salary risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of planned participants. As such an increase in salary

of the planned participants wiil increase the planned liabilities

No other post retirement benefits are provided to the employees.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts
Plan assets at the year end, at fair value

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Present value of benefit obligation at year end (2.93) (2.47)
Plan assets at the year end, at fair value -
Net (liability) recognized in the balance sheet (2.93) (2.47)

Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the year ended 31st March, 2018

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current Service Cost 0.34 053
Net Interest Cost 0.18 0.15
0.72 0.68

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March, 2018

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations (0.08) 0.01
Balance sheet
March 31, 2018 Mareh 31, 2017
Defined benetit obligation (2.93) (247
Fair value of plan assets - =
Plan asset / (liability) (2.93) (2.47)
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening defined benefit obligation 2.47 196
Interest cost 0.18 0.15
Current service cost 0.54 0.53
Benefits paid (0.18) (0.18)
Actuarial losses/ (gain) on obligation-experience (0.08) 0.01
Closing defined benefit obligation 2.93 2.47
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:
Gratuity
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Discount rate (in %) 7.80% 735%
Salary Escalation (in %) 7.00% 7.00%
Expected rate of return on assets - S
Attrition rate (in %)
Up to 30 Years 40.00% 23.00%
From 31 to 44 years 15.00% 23.00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 23.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields available on Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the

obligations.

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as

supply and demand in the employment market.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation As at March 31, 2018  As at March 31, 2017
Year 1 0.41 042
Year 2 0,35 033
Year 3 0.28 0.30
Year 4 021 0.26
Year 5 0.16 020
Next 5 years 1.51 0.95
Experience Adjustments

. March 31, March 31, | March 31,
Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017 2016 2015 2014
Defined benefit obligation 293 247 1.96 1.35 0.98
Plan assets . - - - -
Surplus / (Deficit) -2.93 -2.47 -1.96 -1.35 -0.98
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (loss)/gain -0.07 0.02 -0.14 0.04 0.16
Experience adjustments on plan assets (loss)/gain - - - - -

Gratuity Plan

Sensitivity Level
March 31, 2018
March 31, 2017

Impaet on defined benefit obligation
March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Assumptions

Discount rate

Future salary increases

0.5% increase
0.5% increase

0.5% decrease
0 5% decrease

0.3% increase
0.5% increase

0,5% decrease
0.5% decrease

Amount Amount
(0.10) 011 0.11 (0.10)
(0.05) 0.05 0.05 (0.05)

¢s the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a miethy »I'\iﬁaf."bkl‘n’:@ﬂ
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the year. Sensit
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

27. Contingent liabilities and Commitments (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
(i) Contingent Liabilities
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Income tax matters for AY 2012-13 - mainly arising on account of transfer pricing, = 0.09
During the year the Company has received a favourable order from Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals)

(ii) Commitments

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 17.14 3.24
provided for (net of capital advances)
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Vlarch 3t, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

28A. Financial assets and liabilities

The accounting classification of each categorv of financial instrument, their carrving amounts and their fair values are set out below:

As at March 31, 2018

Financial Assets Fair value through  Fair value through other Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value
profit or loss comprehensive income
Loans . - 11783 117.83 11783
Trade receivables F ; . .
Cash and cash equivalents - . 2825 28.25 28 25
Other financial assets - - 51 68 51.68 5168
Total - - 197.76 197.76 197.76
Financial Liabilities Fair value through  Fair value through other Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value
profit or loss comprehensive income
Borrowings - - 62.53 62.53 62 53
Trade payables - - 106 33 106.33 106 33
Other financial liabilities 19 82 - 4251 62.33 62 33
Total 19.82 - 211.38 231.20 231.20

As at March 31, 2017

Financial Assets Fair value through  Fair vaiue through other Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value
profit or loss comprehensive income
Boans = . 103 34 10334 103 34
Trade receivables - - 047 0.47 047
Cash and cash equivalents - - 28.68 28.68 2868
Other financial assets - - 3837 38.37 3837
Total - - 170.86 170.86 170.86
Financial Liabilities Fair value through  Fair value through other Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value
profit or loss comprehensive income
Borrowings - - 76.97 76,97 76.97
Trade payables - - 64.90 64.90 64 90
Other financiaf liabilities 2961 - 37.21 66.82 66 82
Total 29.61 - 179.08 208.69 208.69
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

28B. Fair values

The carrying amount of all linancial assets and liabilities (except for those instruments carried at fair value) appearing in the Financial Statements is reasonable approximation of fair values

Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Other Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Derivative not designated as hedge 19 82 2961 19 82 2961
Total 19.82 29.61 19.82 29.61

Assumption used in estimating the fair values

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally financial institutions with investment grade credit ratings. cross currency swaps are valued using valuation
techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs, The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models, using present value calculations The models
incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective currencies, currency basis spreads between the respective
curtencies, interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying commodity

29. Fair value hierarchy

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques:

Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e derived from prices)

Level 3 - [nputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities. Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabitities as at March 31,
2018 and March 31.2017:

Fair value measurement using

Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs  unobservable
inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) {Level )
Liabilities measured at fair value
Denvative not designated as hedge VMarch 31,2018 19.82 . 19.82 -

There have been no transfers between Level |, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2017:

Fair value me:

Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs  unobservable
inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative not designated as hedge March 312018 29.61 = 2961

There have been no transfers between Level 1 . Level 2 and Level 3 during the year
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Vlarch 31, 2018
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

I'he Company’s principal financial habilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans, borrowings and trade and other payables The main purpose of these tinancal habihities |5 1o finance the
Company’s operations and to support 1ts operations The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade recetvables, and cash and cash equivalents that derve directly from its operations
The Company also enters into derivative transactions

The Company 1s exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The Company's sentor management oversees the management of these risks The Company’s financial risk activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are dentified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives All dervatve
activities for risk management purposes are carried out by senlor management team that have the appropniate skills, experience and supervision It 1s the Company's policy that no trading in
denvatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these r1sks, which are summarised below

Market risk
Market risk 15 the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial mstrument will fluctuate because of changes n market prices Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk,

currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price nsk and commodity nsk Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, loans and derivative financial
nstruments

The sensitivity analysis mn the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2018 and as at March 31, 2017

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating mterest rates of the debt and denvatives and the proportion of financial mstruments
in forergn currencies are all constant and on the basis of hedge designations in place as at March 31, 2018 and as at March 31, 2017

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities of
foreign operations

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item 1s the etfect of the assumed changes in respective market risks This is based on the financial assets and financial habihities held as at March 31,
2018 and as at March 31, 2017

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk 1s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial nstrument will fluctuate because of changes 1n market nterest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes
tn market nterest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change n interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting With all
other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax 1s affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Financial Year Currency Increase/decrease in basis
points Effect on profit before tax
March 31,2018 INR +50 (058)
INR -50 058
March 31,2017 INR +50 (079)
INR -50 079

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis 1s based on the currently observable market environment

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency sensitivity

The followig tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change n foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant The impact on the Company’s profit before tax 1s
due to changes n the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material

Financial Year Change in rate Effect on profit before tax
March 31,2018
GBP 5% 00!
-5% 001
5% -0 01
E
ure % 001
5% 000
CHF
-5% -0 00
INR 5% -018
-5% Q1R

Mareh 31, 2017

GBP 5% (0 02)
-3%% 002
5% 1011
Euro
-5% 01}
5% 00l
CHF 3%
-3%% {001}
PY 5%
-5%%
5% U35
INR.
5% 1035




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Vlarch 31, 2018
{Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

31. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital mcludes 1ssued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders The primary objective of the
Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the tinancial covenants To maintain or adjust the capttal

structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or 1ssue new shares The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt as derived below The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 75% annually

At March 31, 2018 At March 31, 2017
Borrowings (including short term borrowings) 100.95 11316
Net Debt (A) 100.95 113.16
Capital Components
Equity [Note 9 and Note [0 (B) 26370 227.76
Capital and debt (A+B) 364.66 340.92
Gearing ratio (%) [A/(A+B)| 27.68% 33.19%

At March 31, 2018, the Company had available Rs 22 45 crores (March 31, 2017: Rs 42 91 crores) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities from term loan [l and Rs 38 22 crore (March 31,
2017: Rs S0 cr) from cash credit

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and
borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would penmit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings There have been no breaches in
the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2018 and during the year ended March 31, 2017
32. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the VISMED Act, 2006

Based on the information available with the Company there are no suppliers covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (the Act) This has been relied upon by
the auditors.

33. Corporate Social Responsibility
The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) obligation for the year as computed by the Company and relied upon by the auditors is Rs 241 crore (Previous Year: Rs 190 crore) CSR amount
spent during the year is Rs 2 41 crore (Previous Year: Rs. 1 90 crore)

34, Leases
The Company has taken office premises under operating lease These are cancellable and are renewable by mutual consent on monthly agreed terms  Lease payments amounting to Rs. 2 11 crore
(Previous Year: Rs | 92 crore) have been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2018

35. Segment Reporting
Factors used to identify the entities segment including the basis of organisation

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM is considered to be the Board of
Ditectors who makes strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments

The principal activity of the company is sale of duty free products ncluding liquor, confectionery, tobacco, pertume and consmetics at Terminal 3 (Indita Gandli International Airport) in Delhi
Hence, there is only one reportable segment As the Company’s bustess activities falls within a single operating segment viz, “sale of traded goods™ and is a single geographical segment, the
disclosure requirements of Ind AS— 108 ~“Segment Reporting™ are not applicable

No single customer has accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue
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Dcihi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note 36 Disclosures under Accounting Standards (contd.)

Note

Particulars

36 |Relnted party transactions

36a |Listof related parties and nature of relationship with whom transactions have taken place during the current period.

Description of relationship

Names of velated parties

111 Entities with joint control over the reporting entity

(ii) Entities i which compantes covered in (1) exercise significant
influence

(i) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

{1v) Entities in which persons covered above can exercise significant
intluence

Delhr International Airport Limited (DLAL)
Yalorvm Limuted
MR Airports Limited

Delhi Awrport Parking Services Private Limited

("elehit Dellu Cargo Management (1) Private Limited
Wipro Awrport [T Services Limited

Trivel Food Services (Delhn Terminal 3) Private Limited
{'IM Delhi Airport Advertisement Private Limited

GMR Airport Developers Limited

GMR Sports Private Limited

Mr R S S LN Bhaskarudu ( [ndependent Director)

Ms Kameshwan Vissa (Independent Dircctor)

Mr Michael Gerard Mumphy (Independent Director)

Mr Pawan Kumar Malhotra (Independent Director) (w e f 24th Jan, 2018)

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation

Mote The above list of related panies and relstionship are as certified by the managemen

36b |Details of celated party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2018 and balances outstanding as at March 31, 2018:
Particulars Entities with joint Entities in which Key Management Entities in which Total
control over the companies covered in | Personnel (KMP) | persons covered in (i)
reporting entity (i) above exercise to (iii) above can
significant influence exercise significant
influence
Concession Fee
Delht [nternational Airport Limited 41762 417 62
(37234) (372 34)
Marketing fee
- Delhi International Awrport Limited 1314 1314
(1184 (11 84)
Airport service charges
- Delhi Intemational Airport Limited 583 583
(5 49) (5 49)
Electricity & Water charges
Delhi Intermational Airport Limited 245 245
(295 (295)
Repairs & maintenance charges - others
- Delh International Airport Limited 033 033
{039 (039)
Rent
- Delhi [ntermational Airport Limited 212 212
(1 92) (192)
Sulary
- Delhi Intemational Airport Limited 041 041
(0 36y} {0 36)
Waurehouse charges
- Delh1 Atrport Parking Services Private Limited 038 038
(035) (035)
Terminal, Storage and Processing (TSP) charges
-Celeb1 Delhi Cargo Management (1) Private Limited 071 071
(0 43) (0 43)
Computer Repair and Maintenance
-Wipro Airport IT Services Limited 048 048
(053) (0 53)
StafT Training and Recruitment Expense
-GMR Airports Limited 001 -
(6044 (0 04)
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 000
(0 03) (0 03)
Marketing Exepenses
-TIM Delh Airport Advertisement Private Limited 047 047
(012) )
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2018

| Particulars Entities with joint Entities in which Key Management | Entities in which Total
control over the companies covered in | Personnel (KMP) | persons covered in (i)
reporting entity (i) above exercise | to (iii) above can
significant influence exercise significant
influence
Project Management Consultancy charges
- GMR Aurmport Developers Limited 261 261
(2 10) (2101
('SR Donation
- GMR Varalakshmi Foundation 161 161
(128 (128)
Final dividend paid for the FY 2016-17
- Delhi International Airport Limited 1198 || 9§
(3 59y 15 5939
- GMR Aurports Limited b0 409
(191} (191
Yalorvin Limited 7o 794
(37 (371
Interim dividend paid
- Delh: International Airport Limited 20 20
(17 963 (17 try
- Yalorvin Limited 13 8% 1389
{(1191) (NSO IR
GMR Aurports Limited 715 115
(613) (613)
Reimbursement paid on expenses incurred on our behall
- Yalorvin Limited - .
{10.22) (022)
Reimbursement received of expenses incurred on their behalfl
- Yalorvin Limited 081 081
(103) (L 03y
Delhi International Airport Limited 184 1084
(0 74} (074
Directors sitting fees
- R 5 S L N Bhaskarudu 005 nas
() (-1
- Kameshwari Vissa 005 )05
=) ()
Michael Gerard Murphy no2 002
=) )
- Pawan Kumar Malhotra 102 2
=) bl
Security deposit made
Dethi [ntemational Airport Limited 307 3097
(0aT 1067}
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 103 003
=) [
Security deposit refunded
- Delhi Intemational Airport Limited 012 olz
(027 (027)
Balances outstunding at the end of the year
Payables
Delhi Intemnational Airport Limited 1797 1797
{13 86) (13 86)
- Yalorvin Limited n25 025
(023) (1023
GMR Sports Private Limited 000
(0 00) (10K
-Wipro Airport [T Services Limited 0oz 003
(-) (&
GMR Aurport Developers Limited 062 42
(0 16) (0 1oy
-TIM Delht Aiport Advertusement Private Limited =
(012} 012)
-GMR Arrports Limited VANY 000
) (-)
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Dalhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2018

Particulars Entities with joint Entities in which Key Management Entities in which Total
control over the companics covered in | Personnel (KMP) | persons covered in (i)
reporting entity (i) above exercise to (iif) above can
significant influence exercise signilicant
influence
Receivables
- Celebi Delhi Carpo Management (I) Private Limited 0.30 030
(0.16) (0.16)
- Yalorvin Limited 030 030
(0.24) (0.24)
- Delhi International Airport Limited 3.89 389
(-1 (A
Security deposits given
- Delhi International Airport Limited 117.06 117.06
(103.18) (103.18)
- Delln Airport Parking Services Private Limited 014 014
(0.16) (0.16)
¢! 0.00 implies value leds thai Rs 1,00,000
* Previous yeor Mures hiove been shown in bragkets.

Note
The sales/ provision of services to and purchase/provision of services from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's legnth transactions Outstanding balances
as at the year end are unsecured and mterest free and settlement occurs in cash

37. Transfer Pricing

The Company has eslablished a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-lax
Act, 1961 Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for
transactions entered into with the holding company and other associated enterprises during the financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by the due date as required
under that law  The management is of the opinion that its transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on
the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation

38, In respect of the year ended March 31, 2018, the directors in their meeting dated May 08, 2018 have proposed a dividend of Rs. 2.50 per share to be paid on fully paid equity shares The
cquity dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting and has not been included as a liability in the financial statements The proposed equity dividend is payable
to ali holders of fully paid equity shares. The total proposed dividend and tax thereon amounts to Rs. 20 crore and Rs 4.11 crore respectively

39, The comparative financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 prepared in accordance with Ind AS included in these financial statements have been audited by
the predecessor auditor

40. Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform to current year classification

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
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